
Sports Facility Development Corporation Meeting – February 19, 2024   Page 1 of 2 

 

 

SPORTS FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

MEETING 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM, 300 W. MAIN ST. 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Minutes from November 13, 2023  

2. Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October through December 2023  

3. Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

4. Construction Committee Report 

5. Finance Committee Report 

6. Committee Assignments  

7. Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023  

8. Consider Capital Expenditure Funds for Improvements (Lone Star Park 2024 Capex Request 

List) at Lone Star Park 

9. Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 2023-2024 LSP Update on 

the Thoroughbred Racing Season 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Sports Facility Development Corporation may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

ADJOURNMENT 

Certification 

1



Sports Facility Development Corporation Meeting – February 19, 2024   Page 2 of 2 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Sports Facility 

Development Corporation agenda was prepared and posted February 14, 2024. 

 

Lee Harris, CPA 

Special District Administrator, Finance Department 

 

2



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Tina Alvarez 

PRESENTER: Ron Jensen, President 

TITLE: Minutes from November 13, 2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Minutes from November 13, 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

3

Item 1.



SPORTS FACILITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION MEETING 

CITY HALL E. CONFERENCE ROOM C, CITY HALL 
300 W. MAIN ST.

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023, 6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation was called to 
order by President Ron Jensen at 6:00 PM 

Members Present 
Ron Jensen, President 
Jorja Clemson, Vice President 
R. J Garcia
Mike Del Bosque
Junior Ezeonu
John Stewart

Members Absent Present 
Mike Skinner 

Staff Present 
Cheryl De Leon, Deputy City Manager Cathy 
Patrick, Chief Financial Officer 
Lee Harriss, Treasurer 
Tina Alvarez, Assistant Secretary         
Tiffany Bull, Assistant City Attorney 
Thao Vo, Audit Director

Guests 
Merlinda Gonzalez, Vice President of Operations,
Lone Star Park 
Adela Smith Lone Star Park

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Minutes from August 14, 2023
Vice President, Jorja Clemson moved to approve August 14, 2023, minutes, as presented. John
Stewart seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0.with no abstentions abstentions.
 Ayes Jensen, Clemson, Del Bosque, Garcia, Stewart, Ezeonu 
  Nayes:None
  Abstentions: None

        Absent: Skinner  

2. Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for July through September 2023.

Ms. Lee Harriss reviewed the Monthly Financial and Investment Report for July
through September 2023.
July Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $31,859.00. Interest
earnings for the month were $26,993.00for total receipts of $270,102.00. Disbursements
for the month were $2,996.00. The net increase in cash and investments was
$267,107.00. The Sports Corporation had total cash and Investments of
$14,367,838.00.

The August Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $20,835.00. Interest
earnings for the month were $89,712.00 for total receipts of $271,798.00.
Disbursements for the month were $327,294.00. The net decrease in cash and
investments was ($55,496.00). The Sports Corporation had total cash amd
Investments of $14,312,341.00. Page 1 of3 

4

Item 1.



Page 2 of3 

3. Contract Negotiations Committee Report
President, Ron Jensen stated that there to present.

4. Construction Committee Report
R.J Garcia, Secretary stated that there was no report to present.

5. Finance Committee Report
President, Ron Jensen stated that there was no report to present.

6. Committee Assignments
President, Ron Jensen stated the Assignments would remain the same until next meeting.

7. Sports Corp. Meeting Schedule 2024
Junior Ezeonu moved to approve Sports Corp. Meeting Schedule 2024. R.J. Garcia seconded the motion
carried 6-0 with no abstentions.
Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Del Bosque, Stewart, Ezeonu,Garcia
Nays: none
Abstentions: None
Absent: Skinner

8. Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2023, through September 30,
Vice President, Jorja Clemson   moved to approve. R.J. Garcia seconded the motion. The motion carried  6-0

9.
with no abstentions.
Ayes:Jensen,Clemson,Del Bosque,Stewart,Ezeonu,Garcia
Nays:None
Abstentions:None
Absent:Skinner
 9. Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 2023 LSP Update on the

Thoroughbred Racing Season
  Vice President, Merlinda Gonzalez presented 2023 LSP Update on the Thoroughbred Racing Season 
July 03,2023- July 04,2023 had a record attendance of 20,000.00 people. July was also busy with 
Cricket. they utilized our lots. Due to the Horseracing Integrity and Safety 
 Authority (HISA), which provides oversight of export, Lone Star Park cannot send the signal outside  the 
state. Improvements that are underway include renovating the second and fourth floors, adding a 
concession stand, adding parking lot gates, and the air conditioners and water heaters need to be 
replaced.

September Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $8,417.00. interest earnings for 
the month were $33,842.00 for total receipts of $203,510.00. Disbursements for the month w ere 
$7,016.00. The net increase in cash and investments was $196,494.00. The Sports Corporation 
had total cash and investments of $14,508,835.00. 
Mike Del Bosque moved to approve the financial report as presented. Junior Ezeonu 
seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0, with no abstentions. 
Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Del Bosque Garcia, Stewart, 
Ezeonu Nays: None 
Abstentions: None 
Absent: Skinner

5

Item 1.

Talvarez
Pencil



Page 3 of 3 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
President Ron Jensen acknowledged that there were no citizens present. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Sports Facility Development Corporation may conduct a closed session 
pursuant to Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to 
discuss any of the following: 
(I) Section 551.071 "Consultation with Attorney"
(2) Section 551.072 "Deliberation Regarding Real Property"
(3) Section 551.074 "Personnel Matters"
Section 551.087 "Deliberations Regarding Economic Development

No Executive Session was held.
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, President Ron Jensen adjourned the meeting at 6:26 P.M. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 __________________     _______________ 
R.J. Garcia, Secretary Date 

6

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October through 

December 2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October through December 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Mike Skinner 

TITLE: Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23

Item 3.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: R.J. Garcia 

TITLE: Construction Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Construction Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

Item 4.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Jorja Clemson, Finance Committee 

TITLE: Finance Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Finance Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

Item 5.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Ron Jensen, President 

TITLE: Committee Assignments  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Committee assignments are needed to fill positions on the existing Sports Corporation Committees. The 

current committee assignments are as follows: 

 

Finance Committee 

Vacant, Chair 

Jorja Clemson 

 

Contract Negotiation Committee 

Mike Skinner, Chair  

Vacant 

 

Construction Committee 

R J Garcia, Chair 

Mike Skinner 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

26

Item 6.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2023 through December 31, 

2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Reimbursement to the City for October 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Attached is the billing from the City. The total amount of the reimbursement is $1,932.48.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27

Item 7.



Invoice Date 12/31/2023

Invoice No. LSP45291

Reimbursible Costs Incurred on Behalf of the Sports Corp.:

10/10/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 130.28                  

10/13/23 PCard-Kroger Suite Supplies 17.98                    

11/8/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 133.15                  

12/8/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 111.07                  

12/31/23 Staff Time Oct. 2023 - Dec. 2023 1,540.00               

Total Due 1,932.48$             

1/29/2024

9:21 PM R:\Sports Corp\Billing\24-03 12-31-23 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement   
28

Item 7.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Consider Capital Expenditure Funds for Improvements (Lone Star Park 

2024 Capex Request List) at Lone Star Park 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

At the August 14, 2023 board meeting, the board approved up to $500,000 of CAP EX projects from the 

FY24 CAP EX funds for capital projects, and the total amount available as of December 31, 2023 is 

$790,967.91. This project request is for the Lone Star Park 2024 Capex Request List.  The total project 

cost estimate is $1,001,000 with the Grand Prairie Sports Corp share being $500,500.   

The Sports Corporation has approved a total of $790,967 for capital improvements at Lone Star Park. 

The funds were approved as part of the fiscal year budgets, which have the following remaining 

amounts: 

FY21 $500,000 approved, $500,000 spent, $0 remaining 

FY22 $500,000 approved, $500,000 spent, $0 remaining 

FY23 $500,000 approved, $209,032 spent, $290,968 remaining 

FY24 $500,000 approved, $0 spent, $500,000 remaining 

Attached is the project description submitted by Lone Star for the board to consider for the joint CAP 

EX program. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The current year approved available Capital Commitment Budget for Lone Star Park is 

$790,967.91.  Of that amount, Lone Star has requested $500,500 for the Lone Star Park 2024 

Capex Request List, leaving a balance of $290,467.91 

. 

BODY 

29

Item 8.



Page 2 of 3 

RESOLUTIONS OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, INC. 

Adopted at a Meeting on February 18, 2024 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, INC. APPROVING LONE STAR PARK 2024 CAPEX REQUEST 

LIST AS PART OF THE FY24 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IMPROVEMENTS AT 

LONE STAR PARK 
 
WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation, Inc. (the 

“Corporation”) has determined that Lone Star Park is proposing improvements for Lone Star Park 2024 
Capex Request List and has requested that this be a part of the previously approved FY24 CAP EX 
spending; 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS FACILITIES 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, INC. 
 

RESOLVED, that the Corporation be, and it hereby is, authorized to include Lone Star 
Park 2024 Capex Request List as part of the FY24 Capital expenditure projects, and subject to the 
following conditions: (i) each payment by the Corporation for such expenses must be authorized 
by the Treasurer of the Corporation and the Chairman of the Construction Committee; (ii) Global 
Gaming LSP,  LLC ( “Lone Star”) shall be responsible for the payment of one-half of the expenses 
for the Improvements and shall be responsible for the payment of any and all expenses for the 
Improvements to the extent that the aggregate costs exceed $500,500 and (iii) Lone Star shall 
present the Corporation with plans and specifications with respect to the Improvements, and no 
expenditures will be authorized or expended prior to the Construction Committee’s, in its sole 
discretion, approval of such plans and specifications; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that $500,500 be applied to the FY24 matching funds and be it further 
 
RESOLVED, that the appropriate officers of the Corporation be, and they hereby are, 

authorized and directed to do all other acts, take all actions and prepare all papers, instruments and 
documents in connection therewith which they, in their sole discretion, deem proper in order to 
accomplish and carry out the intents and purposes of the foregoing resolutions, and any and all 
actions previously carried out in accordance herewith be, and they hereby are, ratified, confirmed, 
approved and adopted as the official acts and deeds of the Corporation. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 18th day of February, 2024. 

 

                                                   ________________________________   

       Ron Jensen, President 

 

30

Item 8.



Page 3 of 3 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

R.J. Garcia, Secretary 

 

31

Item 8.



2024 Capex Budget
Lonestar Park, LLC 

Project Title Description Cost
City of Grand 

Prairie Portion
LSP Portion

F&B Remodel
Silks Buffet and Teller Line Remodel. Remodeling counters in Concession 

area.
382,000$                     191,000$                  191,000$                    

HVAC Projects Replace aging units 123,000 61,500 61,500

Fire Pump Replacement
Pump is very old, rusted and is slowing losing flow. Don't expect it to pass 

another year.
116,000 58,000 58,000

Chiller Overhaul Overhaul Chiller to extend useful life 88,000 44,000 44,000

TV and Projector Replacement Replace end of life TVs and Projectors 70,000 35,000 35,000

Gate Truck
Existing truck used to pull the gate has malfunctioned several times. This is 

critical to racing operations during training and live racing.
68,000 34,000 34,000

Parking Lot Gates
Parking lot gates on west side of property and replacement of the damaged 

existing gates.
64,000 32,000 32,000

Commercial Water Heaters Five barns need water heaters. 40,000 20,000 20,000

Surveillance Cameras

Currently we do not have but one or two replacement cameras. Not only 

that there are plenty of places within LSP that needs to be monitored from 

surveillance perspective.

30,000 15,000 15,000

Dump Trailer
Trailer needed for trash, hauling materials, cleaning out barns etc. in the 

barn area.
20,000 10,000 10,000

2024 Split Capex Budget 1,001,000$ 500,500$ 500,500$   

32

Item 8.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/19/2024 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Merlinda Gonzalez 

TITLE: Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 

2023-2024 LSP Update on the Thoroughbred Racing Season 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 capital expenditures and 2023-2024 LSP update on the 

thoroughbred racing season   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

33

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes
	01 11-13-23 - Minutes Communication Form
	Minutes for Sports Corp Meeting 11.13.2023 updated

	Item 2.	Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for October through December 2023
	02 Monthly Financial and Investment Reports 
	24 12-31-23 October-December 2023 Financial and Investment Reports

	Item 3.	Contract Committee
	03 Contract Negotiations Committee Report

	Item 4.	Construction Committee
	04 Construction Committee Report

	Item 5.	Finance Committee
	05 Finance Committee Report

	Item 6.	Committee Assignments
	06 Committee Assignments

	Item 7.	Reimbursement
	07 Reimbursement to the City
	24-03 12-31-23 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement

	Item 8.	2024 CAPEX
	08 CAPEX UPDATE
	2024 LSP Capex - Sports Corp Meeting

	Item 9.	Lone Star Park Report
	09 Lone Star Park Report

	Bottom

